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SI'lUA'.lBD on No. 3 Highw&J at Herdman Sideroad, or more oommon17 known as 
School Lane, a long frame school was built in the earl7 lSSO•s and Dl8nJ' of the pupils 
attending then, who have been pioneas of this district, have desaendents stil1 
living here 'WI. th ohil~ attend.ini this partioular school section, up until June, 
1970 when the school section of No. 6 was phased out and olasses d1aoont1nuad there. 
This was when the Essa Count7 Board took charge (Jan. 1st., 1969) mid a nm 
alemsn'ta7 sohool was built in Sandwich West where pupils from this sohoo1 section 
were transferred fol1cndng its cmipletion in Sept. 1970. It waa ottio1a'll.J opened 
Dec. 6th, 1970. Sohoal. seo'tlon Nee 4 and Section Ne. 10 were also phased wt and 
closed at this tlmeJ pupil.a from No. 4 went to this new sohool and a portion ot them t 
tm Prinoe Andrew School,1 _also in Samlwioh West. The Opportuni t7 al.ass pupils who 
had been attending No. ¥1 with Hrs. Robert Currie as teaoher were transfer.reel to No. 
5 (Charles Coll1ns) and Hrs. Joe Dioker who had been prinoipal of No. 4 was transfer.re 
to No. 5 th teach the OppOl'tunit7 Class and be Principal there. 'l.'h18 were a\ae 
teaching grade S at that aohoa'I.. 

The recoirds kept at the aohool go bao1c to 1909 when a Yr. Wile Weir was teaoher, 
at a sa'1.ar7 ot 8455.00 per J9&r and the total ax:penses of running the school wezre 
861.1032. At thali tb1e G. B. Collins, Charles Herdman and Frank Burka were trustees, 
with George O•Nell as seoretu7-treasurer. $381000 was allotted tor educating the 
oh1l..clNn in the Sandwioh South SohM.1. Area oemprised et ax puh\io sohoo1s in 1953, 
of which ~ went towards aalariea. By this time the Area Board which came 1nto etteot 
1n the eummer et 1945 waa the eleoted bocl7 in dlarge ot schools. A new briolc ona-
room sohoal built on a fnnda1;ioa with a partial basemaat underneath was bu1lt :la 
1916, the origina1 halt aare of 1md on 'Which these schools were built was donated 
off the Me Burke (Grandfather of the present W1]Jjam Burke) \'hose f811d.17 still reside 
on No. 3 Rig ... next to the aohoal.e Mr. M. Burka had beea seoretary-tre8SUl'O of 
the school almost 100 JGWS ago. One Ul'e more land was purchased fJtom the Burke 
F81'1ll in 1940 to enlarge the sohoo1 grounds tor a p1ap area an4 also to have more room 
for a needed bunga1alf sohoo1. 

Mr. David Croft was the oontraotor tor the new sohool, whic cost appradmatel,-
84000.00 8nd he bought the detrentures which drew 6% interest. watter Jessop became 
seoretar.r-treasurezt at the t1m.e the new school opened and ha1tl this office until the 
end et 1944 when the 8ohoo1 Area System oame into being and he :rem.ped. 'lh1S school 
wl th the addition et a frame bungalow one room structure a81'98d the Seotion up until 
1960 when another new modern two-room struoture was built b7 CE1av1no Brothers 
Conatruotlon co., Ltct •• Windsor• and ottic:laUy opened Feb. 10th, 1961.. 

The bungalow SohoGL was built in 1929 at a cost et eisoo.oo. This was to take 
oare of the ever-flow of pup1ls as fam111aa were beginn1ng to move into the area from 
the c1t7 and take hal.tlinga of smaU acreage thus aw1cling the high tmcea. Moat ot 
these ware !nd.uatna'L worken who built sma11 homea and became pemanant tapavars. 
There were 80 pupila trying to be accommodated in the one sahoo.1. room. Up to grade 4 
then was aooommodated. in the new bunga1.cra. vrs. Fred Herdman was the first teaoher 
tor the bungalow and taught her classes in the basement of the Seniar Room tor a 
month until the bungalow was i-e&q. She bad. taught since abou.t 1918 in the Sre Room 
prior to her ~·· J'ollow1ng her in 1936, the .rr. Room teacher 'became Uiss Muriel 
WU.son, (Mrs. John BeUean) who taught until. 1942 and then was transferred to the 
Senior Room faza two ,aars. Miss E. Dixon than taight the Junior Room, fallowed. h7 
Doroth.J M1l1er tor two rears and Miss Clugston tor one. AfterwardS Mrs. line CG\ltts 
taught and the Jmior Room was closed for a perie4 following 1945 when the attendance 
dft;ped baOk to less than tift7 for the achoel seotion following the Seocml Worlcl war41 
Mi-se Coutts -then was transferred to the Senior Room where she taught one ,a• (1945-
1946 ). ·a-s. Stanl.87 Holclen faUowed her in 1946 an4 taight there until. 1966 when she 
retirecl. 

Earl.7 in the 1940•s there was a shifting ot Roman C&tholio pupils from No. 6 
to No. 7 Separate School (st. Mar.r's) which was also located on No. ' Highway about 
twoomiles ftlrther East beJ.ow Oldoastae, and this helped to br.ini the ovel'-811 
attemtan.oe 4Rn. The Junior Room was re-opened again in 1950 with Miss l11een Munk 
as teaoher, she was :taU.cnred in 1951 b)" Mr. Barry Knapper and 1n 1952 'b7 Mrs. Mmtgare~ 
Snelling. Mrs. Marion o. Tiers was appointed. tor the faU term in 1953. 

The Tcnmship Area SJ&tem had its first Board 1n J&rmal'7, 1946 as f&UC98& 
Cba1rman - !farahaU. Jessop of No. 6 
Trustees - Russall Pettnieoe of Noe 10 J orville Fa:rough of Noe 5 J Kenneth 148.olenz:l.e 
of No. 2 and Bubert ShUel of No. 4J saore'ta7-treanrer. Mrs. lan7 Pattwiece of 
Ne. 10. In the termation ot tha Area BO&l'd there were to be fiw tnatees ancl there 
being BD Seotiona 1n San:lwioh South, Mo. 1 SchoQL was not npreaantecl the t!rat JGW 
Thia Board was part of the municipal governil'Jg Board vd. th the election of ottioera 
taldng plaoe at the sam.e ts as the township Munio1pa1. m.eottons each 19&r 1n the 
to'WDShip ball. 

In 1944,. the Home &: Sohool Association purohsed a p:lane tromMisa MlJriel Wil.scm 
teacher amt was moved aU the wa7· from the ottmra Valle7 to the school.. 
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$25.00 was~ tor it, and later when 1D11sio became a oompul.s0Z7 subjeot in the 
aohoola, the Schoo1 Board nimbursed. the Homs & schOol Assooiatlon •. Agnes HartJ.aJ' was 
the .t.lrat iDlS~C inatruotore 

In 1939, the school was wired tor eleotl'icit7 amt the t.lrst eleotrio lights 
were instal.lecle ·. 

I • 

In 1951 a delegation from. s. s. No. 6 Homa & School .Asaooiaticm attended a 
s~o~ Sou~ Council. meeting and· inquired about a MA th program for the schools• 
explaining that not even a nurse y:J.sited the sehoo1s and that a clootor onl7 visited mm 
about once a 18•• ~ Couno11 promised to look into the matW:r and the7 then 
engaged a nurse to Visit the schools regu1ar1Je Mias Anni& BoJ1e was engaged :ln 1<152 
and set vp a heal th progrmii. ohar1;s on innoou1at1ng and vaocinating .. the obil ctna. The 
Rome j & Schools then undertook to do some ot the dlerioal 'ffl'k. in oonneotion with the 
system set up. Miss BoJle was fltil.1 in charge of Sandwioh SGUth Schoal.8 in the ,aar 
1971. When Council waa first &ppl'080hed tha7 related to the delegation that somewhere 
on their books was the name of a hea1th commissioner but the,- QOU14'11•t ·find.. who he 
was and d1dn •t tmow. 

'IEAOHEte OF THE S<HOOL - P.AST AND PRESENT 

Early teachers .wre1 81S'tel.- Benedict, (famer17 Alioe Spring)• step-daughter 
of the late Mike MOC&rth7,, Oldoaat:i.e•a ftrst PostmasterJ Miss :Pal:tcm1 M8J.7 PBancea 
ColeJ Jolm MoJ'D&han, · (first Vluk of Sandwioh Soath) and brother et Hallie MOJD8ban, 

. who.also taught hare1 Miss .Addie DavlinJ Miss UeO•Le&17J Miss 0&1..UgherJ Mias Nora 
KeatingJ ¥1es ·Anna Moran1 W.SS MoJ'ID&·Ma\oJ197t Vb. We1r1 .w.as Eva1111 Bm~.1 1916 when 

. the J;l8W sohoo1 opened.a Margaret~·• (lllo.later beoama Mrs. Ernest o•Neu.. and still 
later Mrs. Jos. Tull.71 wife ot, the Rev• Tul17 who far 18 yaRS had been rector of st. 
Stephen•s Angljoan Churah, 1929-1947. Miss Howe boarded at the home of Mr. & Mn. 
Joseph Lepata, parents ot !4as Clarice Lepain who had been searetal'J' and bookkeeper 
at the Oldoaatle Co-operative in the eea tor JD8D1 years an.cl died in neo. of 1969. 
Theil' farm home was aoi'oss the SohoQ\ lane tram the sahoOl 9n No. 3 Higlm&r• rn those 
da18. bo&N ran :from.· SL.65 to «L.75 per week ffJ1! teaoher&f ~ss Nellie M()JD8han. She 
was· the aunt of .JA-s. Ned Lyons (Mat7 Broderiok) ·who still. resides :ln the ana. Mias 
M01Jl8b8n taught th8 wrlter•s father at s. s. No. 8 Ma:ldstone about 100,,aan "°' 
Mias Margaret Rossi M'rse Josephine DurmJ Miss Christina PassinghamJ.uiSS Jean 
MGDona\dJ Mias ·Acnes McLavghl.ln, who also taught at Noe 7 Sep&l'&'te SchoolJ Miss 
Nellie F.18 ming•, (Mrs •. Fncl Herdman) whose tamil)" farmed ~ the flN& t,r JD8D1 J981.'S1 
she came back tO the sohool aa· teacher :1n the Junior Room. in 1929 when it apene4. 
The7 reshted at tJd.e time at tha aerner ot Norlih 'Dal.bot; Road -4 $thoo1 LaaeJ aha 
now res!des on Du.oharme Ave •• in Roselandt Miss Ru'b7 imerSGD (naar Mrs. Hugh J. o•NeD.) 
who taught for 9 J8tmJ heft, mB&'rieci :lnte one ot · cmr· pioneer famn :tes and nmatne4 

here to become a pan of our oomrmmit,- as did Mrs. Herdmaa. Dl 1953 theJ' built a, 
lovel.J' new raneh t1P8 ·home on South Ta1.bft Roal n881' walker Road· oil 'f;he pioneel' farm 
Pl'OP8 ... t,- ot h1a parent;a tbs Frank o•Neil~s me,wen 1natnmental tor 1nitlatlng the 
first telephone nmniolpa\ 8J8Wm in the tcnmsldp. ncr. o•Neil. was oo-owner of the 
Oldoastle CGld StoJ'age ani bu:llt 1ih8 bu1ld1ng but ha'V8 sold ont the enterprise. '!hen 
oame Mias PhJ'll.ia ~. noll Mrs. fta1matm. of MiohiganJ Miss Murial Wilson. now ·Mrs. 
John Bel.de• also of Miald.gmJ Miss Marian Smith, now Urse Uwe Knause1 et Harrisburg, 
Pa~, she m&ITied a Ph11ad.elplta l.awJel'J Mrs. 11a. OCN.tta1 In 1946, Mrs. Stan.1.ey Hold.en 
oame as prineipa\ ot the Senior Room and is mother ot the teaahera to ~ into 
pioJleer farming talan tes ad ND&in here. She rem.aine4 until. 1966 when she ret1"4. 
Mi's. Eleanor rtmMJl then became Prinoipal amt wm. Brookenahift hat ohal'ge of 
Intermediateae The Stlotion was phased ou" and the sehoal he1cl no more Glasses at the 
term. em, June• 1970. Mr. Frank Foote was the laat janitor. 

. HOME & SCHOOL .ASSOCIATIQ.M 
Earl,- in the 19ar 1940, Mrs. Frank Mills consul.tad teachers, Miss l61rie1 Wilson 

and Miss Dorothy Miller· if ther would be in aoCGl'd w.L th tond.ng . a Home & SchoQl. Assoc. 
ftll' the school. The trustees at the time W8l'e a\so consulted, thn' being Mr. ELmm- M 
o•Ne0.1 Mr. ·Chas• Weahbroek and Mr. Chase Diokaene AU these boclies gave their 
approva\, notes are written bJ" the teaahera to the parents 81d on ~b.lth• 1940 a 
meet.1.ng was ca138d to be held in the school at 8.00 p.m. fer the purpose ot toning 
the .Assoo·ciation. Mrs. Mill who hat belonged to John oanpbell Homa & School Assoo. 
in Windsor, arranged for the Organizer of the \'i1ndsor Home & Sohool Council, Mrs. 
Lome Rogers amt the PJtesi.dent of the Counoil, Mrs. E. w. Lanoastel' to come CMt to 
explain the neceas81"1' steps to be taken to form. an .Association of our own. The aims 
and objeets ot the moftl!lant was aplained and the group of parents assembled voted te 
have. them came· out aga:la one week: later to organime the group. so, it was on the 
evening of Feb. 12th• 1940, s. s. ·No. 6 Home & School Aasoo1at1on beoama into being. 
There were elewn charter m.embel's •. Mlss Wilsen and Mrs. Chas .• Washbrook Gre 
appointed to N\1re to the teaeher•s room to piok out a elate of otticera. Mrs. w.A. 
Crowder was appointed. tram the floor to taka th8 m.1.mtea ot the organizational meet~ 
The ftrst ngu1.ar mset.1.ng was held in the sohool onKarch 18th, and the new group had 
their first money-mald.ng project in the form of a oomunit7 081.'cl P8l't1' at the h8m8 of 
the nev47 elected president, urs. George Martin, Wa\ker Roat, on Mm'Oh 1ste with a 
large attendance, 16 1;ablea of oard8 being ·plapd.. 
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The new officers who took Gtf:Lce were 1 Pnsident - Mrs. George Jla1tt1Q ( a verr 
new resident. in the COJllJlU1dt7) so as not to show p..uality1 we •· Vi~siden-~ 
Mrs. ChRles wasbb~oek• Miss Muriel WilsonJ reoording seoret817' - Mrs. w. A. Orowd8itJ 
corresponding seoret817'·- Mrs. R. D. FawcettJ treasurer - Mrs.·01 .. 'fialperJ 
Eiceoutiw members - Mrs. Frank M11le• Miss Dorothy Mil'er• Mrs. A. A. Wa\sh• Hrs• . 
Gordon W!3J1ams and ur. John JessGp (the onl.7 father to attend at the organilational 
mseting). The7 YO'ted to meet at the school 9V817 third Monda.7 night. 

The toU.ovd.ng PHsidente tollawecl Mrs. GeCll'ge Martint Mrs. Frank Millst Mrs~ . 
Perera- '8880.Pa ·Mrs. David Doimt1'7• Mrs. H. Le F~_, Mrs. George ~ Mrs • .&rth• 
Mann, Mrs• wm. :BcMahfr• Mrs• Saa MacKenzie, Ura. Cad Es.Pini am! the last pitesiclent 
Mrs• B. ·E. Stai.th.· The organiaation .disbanded when the sohOG1. was o1ose4 at the -1 
ot 1970• Se Se No. 6 Home & Sohoo1 Aasooiaticm wasla the V8r7 first l'tlra\ .Assooi&~cm 
fcmned in Essmc Count7• · 

Mrs. Mills1 Mrs. Je8Sf.P an.cl Ura. DcmnaJ.r arJd Mrs. Fraser who aU oomplatecl 
their three 19ars as pites:btent were presented w.l th gol.4 insonbecl P.Ne:ldent•s pins• 
AU these 1118mbel'• retired. troa the Assooiation .aa theil' .oJdldl'ea grduated m4 the1 
had no man attend1ng the sahoa.\e Mr&. w. A. Crowder ret!Nd at the Annua\ Ueet:lng. 
?larch 22n4,19541 after 14 · ,e•s of aotiw sanioe w:l th the group. on17 mimd.g three 
meetings in aU th&\· t!mse For· her until'ing etfat!ta she was pieesentsd with a / · 
beau.tifu1 oup and saaoer 'b1' Mrs. Rogh O•Ne:ll on behaU of the Association. Mr•• H. L. 
Fraser, befan the P-89 di8bamied pz'esented her with a tue Kemberahip. 

· Jul.7 8'h, 1966 .. June• 1966 was exodus month at s. s. No. 6 (Peror MoKee SohoolJ 
It ma-ked the reUirJementl of the Sr. Room. teachel'• Mrse Stazile7 Halden and the 
tarewall ot Mra.·wa~naoe 'J:lera (liho next 19•.woild be Pi'1noiPal of P.rith Pn'bllo 
Sohodl· (8• s. Noe ll)J the graduation of 15 pate 8 p11p1ls and the diaaal'Ving ef the 
Hom & SOhool .Assoo!atien du to the ~ sohoa1. art-up. Th18 .Association 881'V8d 
oont:Lnu.oual.7 for 26 '9•s ~th aatiw pannt part:lo.1pation1 splendi4 oo-opera1d.on "tween parents1 teachers and pupilae · It was not cml.7 an informative poup1 having 
JD8IV' timel7 speaken but a\ao .filled a need for oomnamit7 social toge~•. . 
espeoia1.l.7 among 7CJUrJ8 sohoolr-age parents. Thurs., June 23rd., at s p.m.. ~ a 
bit of nostalgia m1Dd 'With some sad emotions to the writer \1hO was the Chanel'. 
ReoOJ'dil1g Secre'balT and stnn clil1gen- with other ohetar oftioers, in.e1'1dir,a Mrs. 
GeOl'ge Martin, first pZtes~ to get the Assooiation off the groum1 and aot1'9911'. 
1funoti~. . 

Mrs. ·Ha\den pJ'esented the graiuates with school pins purchased b7 the retiring 
Assooiation. Ck'atuatea, Bruoe Bishop, ffa1'V97 Bishop• Patsr COopV, Lea1.and Hal'tl~ 1 
Joan ~ Paga Libby• Robert Martin_ Paula MeKee• Bill PettDieeea Chel'Jl 
~nt. Elatne Sheple,.1 Cath1' Shields, Eliubeth Taylor• and Kath1' Thrashel'e 
Gu.est speaker was. Foster Hutton• Vioe-pri.ncipal ot Essex District lUgh. SOhocG., who 
spOke on •Jumping In" .and wh1ah proved aomawhafJ o, a·~emd.~ tw him. It was at ~' s. 
No• '• he had his praotioe teaoltlng with urs. Halden. He wm..1.nisoed wf:bh Mrs. A.· 3. 
Maim and Mrs. Be 1. Stauth• his· grade 2 and pads 6 teaehers, nspeotivel7 at King 
Edw&l'd PuhUo Sohool in Windsor. 

lfrB. Stauth presented vrs •. Tian_ w.tth a gift' ~ Mrs. Cel Esping1 past 
pieesidant of Pero,. KoKee Hom ~ Sehoa1. .Assooiaticm. \N ~ whea the mw sohool 
whioh beoame the Peroy MoKee Sohoo1) tram. the G14 Nee '• .J)naent.\ Mrs• Stau1ih,­
ohai.l'man tor the evening with ·a Past President•• pin. Mrs~ Stauth was the l88t 
president of the Assooiation. 

Open house at the aohoa1 on June 25th (8a'bll'da7) 1966, smr tbe return ot lrllm1' 
of urs. Holden• s pup:lls to nm.1.nisce with her and .former olaSa-mates. 'l'ha last 
F1el4 Da7 was held June 28th• this nant being bald eaoh year a1noe 1940 when the 
Bame & Sohoal. was org~ect. 

A't an emoutive meeting held at the home of .firs. Be E. Stauth, on July. 4th, 
1966• fo:mat motion was made and 08l'r1ecl · to surren4er the oh.after ot hte Peroy · MOKee 
Home & SOhot4 Assoo1at;1on fcmned. as s. s. No. 6 Sandw.l.oh South on Feb. ~ 191.o. 
The .writer pens these last remA'L'ks with sadness of hewt; but a\ao one f1UaCl w.lth 
wcmderNL mamo:rie8 ot aerv1ng this group aa an otflwa tm- 14 ~ (Mrs. WJ..Cl'owdeJ 

m<lPHJES AND AWARDS WON AT S.S. NO. 6 SCHOOL 

'Die highest marlcs in the En.trance Exandnations tor Eesaa: County in the 7881' 
1937• was won bJ' one ot GUr pupils• ·Mmtgaret Fawcett, now Mn. Railten Wade who 
resides on Cabana Roacl :in Roselad. She was the daughter of the R. De Fawo:tt•s of 
Walker Road. The a-. award was made tG Mae Banwell :ln .19'9. She became a Kediacl 
Doctor in her own right, graduating fnm John Hopkin•s Universit,. and is the wife of 
Dl'. Anderson NettJ.eahip• of Lltt:Le !took• Ark. She was th8 daughter· of the mhard 
Bamrell•s o£ Oono. ~. Sandwich South and latel.7 ot Roselmuf where the7. reti.red from 
their farm to res14e. 

Entrance lxaminations were eliminated in 1951. 



( 79 ) ICHOOLS OF SANDWICH .SOU TH (Cont.) 

Se s. Nee 6 

Awards received in the Annual. Music Feativall.s since they were started in 19501 
were by Jimloy Channey in 1950 and l95l for s0lo; Jimmy Channey and Frank O'Neil for 
Duet in 1952; girl•s solo cup was preaented t0 Karen Mann with 86 points and boy's 
solo cup to Harry Fraser with 84 points in 1953,J the Junior room in No. 6 was runne~ 
up in choral singing. 

DEDICATIDNS AND MEMORJ.ALS 

In 1942, two framed pictures, "Blue Boyt' and "LittJ.e Girl." were donated, one 
to each room., by Mrs. Harry Jenner, dedica-{;4d to her daughter Phyllis, a graduate of 
this sohoolo In September, 1948 a textbook for grade eight pupils "England in 
EUrope11

1 written and autographed by the author, Prof'. E. L. Daniher of the College of 
Education and the University of Toronto was donated ts the sohool by Mrso w. A. Crowd.a? 
neice of the author f'or the school libral"Y'• This book being dedicated te the three 
Crowd.er children who were graduates of' this school; Helen with Honours in 1939, 
Robert with honours in 19421 and Edwin with honours in 1953. In 'Feb._, 1954 at the 
Home & School 14th Birthday party, a beautiful tram.ad portrait of Her Majesty, Queen 
El.izabeth Second was presented to the Senior Room trom Mr. & Mrs. H. Le F.r:-aser, in 
mempry of their son Danny 1 a graduate, who was 1/agioal.ly killed in an automobile 
accident, June, 1952J. Mrso Fraser was president at this time of our Home & School 
Association. A sim:il.ar but smaller one was presented to the Junior Room at this time 
!'rom Mr. & Mrs. Manson Jess:ep., dedicated to their son Gary, a 1953 graduate. Gary•s 
grandfather was Seotretary-Treasurer of the eld Sandwich South Sohoo1 Board for over 
30 yearso 

SOME 'WHO GAINED DISTINCTION OUT OF 'DUS SCHOOL 

Out of our school came Dr. Raymond Morand, Me P.; Walker 'Whiteside,, Lawyer; 
Cb$-les Cole, passed Civil Service Examinations while attending school when Miss 
Nellie Moynahan was teacher; Miss Ida Collins, Missionary; Mr. Garnet McKee,, whG 
invented the Windshield. Wiper f'or automobiles; Dr. Mae Banwell (Mrs • .Anderson 
NettJ.eship) 1 daughter of the Edward Banwell ts, pioneer farmers of the ar.-eaJ Grace 
Robinson became the first teacher to graduate in many years and started teaching near 
London in 1953. Since that time there have been several teachers, nurses, and 
graduates of Ontario .Agricu1ture College, Guelph and Western Agricultural Institute 
e>f Technology, Ste Thomas. Bonnie Copland, daughter of Mro & Mrse John A. Cipland,, 
who studied both voice and piaue had earned many awards and soaolarships, graduate of 

S, s. NO. 6 HONOUR ROLL (WORLD WAR Kl Windsor Teacherts 

HenrY' Archibald 
Claire Atkinson 
Wilf ed. Atkinson 
Dona1.d Burke 
George Cunningham 
Irvin Hat'Vey 
Garnet Jessop 
Delbert Thoms 
Gordon Thoms 
Lawrence Holder 

Norman Martin 
William Martin 
William Washbrook 
Harold Washbrook 
Will :Maxwell 
Leon O'Brien 
Lenore O'Neil. 
Gordon Golden 
Carson Jessop 
Jean Jessop 

Bill O •Neil (E2C 
Marion Slnith- teacher) 
Murray Washbrook 
Cecil Vanderbeck 
Dennis V anderbeck-(ldlled in 

Action) 

College. 

Jim McKegney 
Ernie McKegney 
Lawry MoKegney 
Stailey Walsh and Dena1.d1 White. 

SOME PROMOTION REPOR 1S THROUGH THE lE.ARS OF S • s. NO• 6 

May 16th, 1913 ~ Sr. 4 e Clarence Holden, W:IJJ.ie Collins, Cora Dwnouchelle, 
Russell LePain, Percy Jessop.; Sr. 3 e Greta O'Neil, Gladys Holden, Etta Collins, 
Eve1yn Root,, Al.da Morand,, Leila Dumouohelle1 Harold VollaneJ Jr. 3 ee zazella Sabree, 
Al.bert Dennison_, Stanley lanisse, Cecil Janisse; Sr. 2 - Allan Vollans, Lorraine 
Dumouchel1e, Gordon Robinson, Roy Dennison; - Jr. 2 - Dorothy O'Neil, Ruby Holden, 
Char1otte Dum.ouchel.lA,, StanJ.ey Welsh,, Grace Jessop; .. Sr. l. ti!' Earl Jessop, Laura 
Janisse; Jr. 1 - Martin Burke, Irma Vollanso Sr. Primer - Esther .Allen, Milford 
Robinson_, Gordon Holden, Clifford Robinson, Mildred Washbrook; Part Pre - Lucille 
Janisse, Raymond Burke, .Al.ta Jessop_, Clarence Jessop, Pearl Jessop, Amber Holden, 
Evan Vollans, Hugh O'Neil. - c. A. Passingham., teacher• 

March 5th,, 1915 - Jr. 4 - Harold Vollans, Mildred Harshaw,, Gordon Robinson, 
Allan Vol.lens, Stan1ey Janisse; 3rd. - Dorothy O'Neil, Gertrude Herdman,, Ruby Holden, 
Cecile Janisse; 2nd. - Earl Jessop, Vio1et Robinson, Martin Burke, T.rma Vollans,, 
Beau1ab. Jackson, Wesley Washbrook, Laura J.anisse, Monica LePain; Part 2 .... Otte Jessep, 
Evan Vollans, Ross Shepley, Gordon Ho1aen., M:i.J.:tord Robinson, LucjJ1e Janisse,, 
Raymond Burke_, Mildred Washbreek; - Sre I - Kathel.een O'Neil,, Hugh O'Neil, .A.1.ioe 
CollinsJ Amber Holden; - Primer'- Haze1 Jessop_, John Burke, Edgar Washbreok. 
Jo Dwm, teaehero 

July l.st., 1955 - TG Gra4e 9 - Robert Banwell,, Joan, Brant, W~e Jessop, (H) 
Curtis McDonal..d_, Jack Paquette, Judy war«. 
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June Promotions - lSSS, (Conte) 

Te grade 8 - Barbara Banwell, Joan Butcher (H)t lfaltgaret Ann Herdman (H), 
CatbJ.'Jn Madtiar• Karen Kann• Betv McBride, Hugh J• o•Neil, 081'7 Provenoher. 
To grade 7 - BJJ.'On Bran~1 John Ford (H)1 ~Fraser, Calvin Maotier (H)1 Bill Munre. 
To grade 6 - Beth Banweu, Bemal'd Burke (H), Robert Chioi1o1 Bonnie Copland, Tom 
Barahav, Neat Jessop (H~_, Donald Maotier, Jud7 McCord (H)1 aau.·stauth, Ju.dy ~-. aU 
from the Senior Room wl th Estelle Holden, PrinOipal and. teaahel'. 

Junior Room - Mrs. Marion Tiers• teacher. 
'1't grade S - Kenneth Brindl.aJ"• L111:1beth Eberts, Gerald PJ.-aser, Richard Herdman• 

Barry H~ GarJ7 HaeKensiee . 
'1'> ftrarle 4 - PeJq' BGJ"Cl.1 David Brindl.971 Howard DeWitt, Leah Me Houghton, Billie 

MoCord,. Dean Neu.art, L8ftT Stockman. . . 
To grade 3 ~ Allen Bsnwe11.t Keith Campbell, '.l'otlJ' DeVnoker, Rosemarie BU.as, 

David Waahbrootc. 
To grade 2 - fladel)'n Barr• Roseanne Bellatre, Jud.7 Qld.Jle1Janet oennamo, 

Jmm:le MaoKe~ie, Susan Managhan• Brian Munro. 

19'r/ - Graduates au.t ·of grade 8 - 11rs. Stanley Holden, sohool pr!noipa\ presented 
pins to the to.1.1owing graduates Iqnda White, W'JJ 1 iam Munro, Beverl,' Haril.9J', Harry 
Fraser, Shatton Priee., Cl.aid2a Parent, Patricia Paquette, ~ O'Brien• <'41.vin Mao Tier, 
John FOJ!d• Roger ·0urt19 and Byron Brant.. 

1958 - Mrs. S'banle7 Hd14en piesentad. graluafla pins tot Beth Banwall• Bernie Burke~ 
Dana Leithea\• Jud:t MoCoN, Bonnie Coplaml, DOJm7 Maotier, Neal Jessop• GaJ!e Neuret, 
Ga.1.1 Stauth• Robert ~u.,. and. Sandra Parent. Thia poup ot beginners ha4 been 
responsible for the reopening of the Junior Room in 19501 and Mrs. earl Beping real a 
poem cled:1aated to the graduates, oomm.ent.i.JJg on some of the events 'that had. ta'anap!ztea 
during. theil' at19" at Hoe 6. · 

S8pt.18th1 19'9 - Mrs. Stanle7 Holden presented gratvate pins to 1.51ue Eberts, 
Patricia Crea:to Sid Barbera BarJ.T Halden• Kenneth Bri.ndle71 o_,.. · MaOKensdea Gera1.cl 
Fl'aser1 Jaok u.o, and Dana7"Leitbeade RiOk Broom was ehsent but gratuatea. Four 
members of t11e Hema & Sehool Assooiation 1lho a'9 respons1ble for • piDS glftl'.l the 
graduates ea.oh ;&•• wou1cl be 1taring 'bha SOhOG1. beOauaa of a ab1ft ot pu.pt1s to J.Vor 
Chandler Soho£. 'J?he7 were· Mrs. Henl7 Russel1,, MN. H. Lemmon, Mrs. Broom an4 Mrs. Jack 
McKeown. · 

Mara1l. 1949 - Nead.r 100 guest attended the turky dinner served b)" the members of 
s. s. No. 6 Home & SOhoo1 Asaoo1ation held in Roseland Helle Graduation pine were ' 
presented to · the graduating olaaa of 1948 to Marien Bennet\• BeverleJ' Jessop• and 
1'11T8F Cl'Ott. 

JUl.J't 195'7 - P.l'omotlona of ~. s. No. 6. Senior Jtoom 1\taoher - v.ra. Estella Holden 
To grade 8 - Bernard Bul'ke,.Bonnie.Copland, Ne&l.Jessop, Donald Jlaetiw• Ju.dy·MoCord, 
Dona\d Reunding aU Honours• Pass .-Beth Banwell.1 .Rebert Chioilo, Jaok·Grainger, 
Dana Leithe&d• o•e Neuert, Judy Paquette, Sandi-a Parent,Gail S'8Uth, Jud:t 1.\lylor. 
To grade 7 - Honoursa Jaclc Odailo, L1l3ibeth Eberts, B81'J7 Holden, Passt Kenneth 
Brincnq 1 Gerald· It\taser1 Daniel Lei thaat, Garry !laOKensie• Harold Ta,iar. . 
Junior Boom. Mrs. Mar.Lon '.r.Utrs• teacher - To grade 6 - David Brindley• Howard DeWitt, 
Rosemarie KU.as, Leah 1lae Houghton, Billie McCord• Dean Heuert. To grade S - Allen 
Banwell• 'lb~ Devreoker, David Russel1 and David washbrooke To grate 4 - Made1JD :earr, 
Roaa-anne Bellain1 Tel'lT Bogden, Ju.dy Clzal.J2.e1 Jhl MaoKensd.e,- SU8an Managhan1 Brian 
Munroe Te grad.a· 3 - <'Atoll Cooke, Doreen Cooke•· Malcolm. Coplam.t. 8\18aa Staaev1 Bar~ara 
Thompson_, Donna Young. To grade 2 - Billie BOWBher,. LarJ.T Brindley 1 Gftgol'f De~~oker, 
Linda Jessop• Jimmie McKee, Megan Mitchell, Nane7 Pettniece• Deanna ~. . 
Douglas Russell, Date Waahbrook, Bewrlq Young, Linda Young. · .. · 

JULJ' s, 1960 - Graduates to grade 9 - Stephen Barber. H •• Sharon Blake, David 
Brindley, Deloras Crosby, 'l'ofl1' Devreaker, HOW&l'd Dew.Ltt, Ra&emane EU.as H., Dorothy 
Lieb~ W'l'iam MoOold., Dean. Neu.art and .fttdd Tessier. 

Grade 7 to gz-ae 8 ·-Allen· Bamlell• MadelJD Barr (H), Roseanne Bellaire, Jud1' 
Carl)da (H) • Larry <ltawtord ·James MacKens:la (B) •· Susan Managhan1 Brian Mllnro1 a.,, 
Tessier (H), Dav.id Washbro~. To grad.a fJ - Mariant GNJ"• Cl&Jton Liebmn.an1 ~ 
Liebmnan. 'lb grade 6 - Bill. Bowshera (R), Malcolm Oop1an4 (R), ·carol. qrosl?1'.t Fl~e 
CrosbJ'• Kevin Mann (H), James McKee (H), Megan Mitchell (H)e1 8uan Stace,- (HJ• . 
Barbara ihompaon (H). To,grade 5 - LarJ7 Brindlq• ·Billie Crawford, GregOJ.Y DeVl'icker, 
<'4L1een Lie~ _N&nCJ' Pet&wieee, Dale Waehbroolc. 'l'b grade 4 - Larry ~ilo. 
Everett Crosby• carlene Esping (H)1 14aorreen Fleet (H)• JD. Frith (H),, ~Maughan, 

(H)• To grade ' - Billie · Bm'ke, H8B07 cabanaw,, PatlJ7 Coopm.-* F.l'ank Orawfol'd, Lester 
Croa'bJ' •. Marion Me.Ates, Paula MoKee (H),. Dwain ·Milks, Billie aliver (H), Danzv- Sne1grO'V9 
(Hlt. Lois Washbrook (H). Grade 1 to Grade 2A - Diane O:awto:rd, (H). Cynthia CNS' lb7' 
Je.n:er.r Esping1 <her1'J. Leitheat, Robert ldlks• Mnnav Mitohell (H)• Ruth Parr (H) 
Katherine Pettnlece• Robert Staoe)"e Gra4a 1 to paie 2B - Bett7 ~awtm'Cl, W..,. . 
crawtoN.., Lal'1'7 <:rosby, wa,na Durocher, and Joe7 van Den Dr:lessohe. 
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The school won many honours in the music field and in the public speaking contest 
The lltusio l'estival started in 1950 and county schools as well as city schools 

competed. Under the capable instruction of Miss Larissa Senchuk and Mtsa· Agnes HartJ.ey 
each year saw s. So No. 6 getting their share of winners in most classes as well as 
choirs. In 1959 successM candidates were Carlene Esping, Garry MacKenzie, Gerald 
Fraser, Allen Banwell, James Frith, Leah Mae Houghton and Lillibeth Eberts-. Ttro school 
choruses also won that year. In 1960 the Junior Choir tied for third; the Senior Choir 
winning second and fourth; the Girl's Choir winning third with 1•Spring Thoughts'•• Paula 
McKee won piano solo "icicles" and soloists Delores Crosby singing "Loveliest of '.lrees•t 
won first with 86 marks; Allen Banwell singing ''Hawaiian Song», secohd; David Libby won 
third with 83 marks; Maureen F.l.eet singing "Rock-a-Bye" with 84 marks, James ]'ri th, 
singing "CB.rpemter, Carpenteru,, with 85 marks and Billy Bowsher· singing "Going to the 
Fair", with 82 marks, all winning first in their reaective classes. Kevin Mann, singing 
"Going to the Fair1

• won third with 80 marks. Susan Managhan and Judy Carlyle doing a 
duet with 77 marks won third; in 1961 ~ s. s. No. 6 Sr. Room 2;:iart with 79 marks won 
third prize• 

In 1966, The Home & School had a "Family Fun Nightn with a musical. program under 
the direction of Mr. A. LinneJJ., the school Music Director. 1hese were numbers won at 
the annual Music 1'estival. The Jr. Room presented their first number intrcxfuced by 
David McKee cal.led ••Cum-bi-yall•t, then ''Sing, Sing, Sing•• introduced by Beth Bower, and 
"Tommy, the Cat'' introduced by Gary Stauth. Kevin Trimmer, a grade 5 student told us 
the story of st. Patrick which he wrote and memorized himsel.f. 

The Senior Room introduced by Con.llie DeVreckel!', sang ''The Huntartt • The Public 
Speaking contestants, introduced by David McKee then presented their speeches. Ruth 
Parr, second prize winner, for the township spoke on llQid Bones''- '!he Wonder Horse••, 
and Paula McKee, the first prize winner on ''Are Women People?" Mrs. Stauth, the presiderr 
then presented their awards. '!he Jr. Room then did a poem '"AWindy M:archt•, followed by 
the Senior Room singing "Lemerictt introduced by Bill Pettypiece. Not only could the 
Juniors speak and sing but they could al.so do a cute Scottish Dance• Harvey Bishop 
introduced the Senior Room inn''Dear Land of Home" as the completion of the student's 
part of the programo But leperchauns were at play and Mrs. Stauth took over the 
remainder of the evening with fitting a.ndf funny jokes and an Irish Sing Song, then 
the mummies of Percy McKee went all out and did a mellerdrammer with Mrs. Ao Mitchell 
reading the story and the mwmnies in costume acting out the parts. They couldn't be 
alone so they included the Poppies, dressed Jim Fleet and Garl Esping in large green 
bow-ties, top hats, a white glove each complete with a cane and then read verse like: 

"Whose the head of the family, 
Does even serve as a school trustee, 
Who never stops to count calories, 
But screams at the price of groceries. 
Trees and shrubs, he surely can grow 
For the tomiship - always on the go." 

After each of these they all joined in the chorus:: 
"The Pop, Pop, Poppies of Percy McKeen., accompanied by Mr. Stauth on the piano. 

Truly this brought down the roof and the end of the program.. 

Eight contestants competed in the "Public Speaking Contest" o~ Feb. 14th, 1958, 
held at No. 6 School sponsored by the Ontario Public School Trustees and Ratepayer 's 
Association. Successful candidates were 1st.- Gail Stauth of No. 6 School; 2nd. -
Beth Banwell of No. 6; and third - Lynn Ure of No. 1. Judges were Fred Leitch, 
District Inspector, Rev. B. Fox of Paulin Memorial Church and Mrs. w. A. Crowder, the 
writer of this history. 

June 16th, 1961 ... The teachers of the Sandwich Sou th School Area met at the 
Percy McKee (No. 6) Public School at 3.30 in the afternoon to honour their Music 
Supervisor 1 Miss Agnes Hartley who was leaving the Area to take up her duties as a 
Music Supervisor in Sandwich West in September. 

On behalf' of the teachers, Roger Penney, Principal. of Fairplay School, pr~sented 
Miss HartJ.ey with a beautiful tea-wagon and expressed the sincere regret of the teacher1 
at her leaving. Miss HartJ.ey made a gracious reply• Mrs. Allen who was also leaving 
at the end of June was presented with a dainty cup and saucer. Mrs. s. Holden and Mrs. 
Y. Tiers of No. 6 served a delicious lunch to the fifteen teacherso 

In March,, 1966, a:b the annual banquet of the Honours Club o:f Essex District 
High School. held at the Cleary .Auditorium for students and their parents under the 
direction of Mr. w. E. Franke, Principal, Founder of t.he Honours Club, presented 
awards. The only one winning this award out of Saniwich South was Barbara Thompson 
of s. s. Noe 6 School. In the same year in August, Barbara was the only student from 
this Area to win a trip to Newflundland for a tw~ek trip :from Essex High School when 
24 area students won this trip, sponsored under the "Centennial Youth Travel Program". 
It wa-s for grade ll students from Essex & Kent Countieso The initial contact came 
with a swim in the Atlantic Ocean. For many it was their first t.;...,..,. .......,. - th · famil · ....aig .,,. ..... y .i...1.-om eir 

198
• 'Ihe purpose was to acquaint them with dif~erent narts 

.L' of' t.hA ~n~1n+_.,....,. 
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Dec. 18th, 1953 - The children of s, s. No. 6 scheol received. this heading in the 
Windsor Star ttCommends Jlreat Courtesy ot School Children•• in a letter to the papera 
Sirs The following is a cci>py of' a letter which I have sent to Yrs. Hold.en, Principal of 
s. So Noo 6 Sandwich South Scaool 1 

Dear Mrs. Holdens On mond.ay,,November 30th, at approximataly 4.30 in tile afternoen 
my husband, Bruce AUstin was laid away in GreenJ.awn Cemeteey • Sm.all groups of' children 
apparentl.:r re:turning home from :reur school stoad at attentien and bared their headll 
while the funeral. prooessien pasaed. them on Highway- No. 3. 

I and other members of JJf3' f'aJDily were so impressed. iii th the· r~spect and reverence 
exhi\lited by these children that I was prompted to write this letter to tell you about 
it. It is apparent that your school and others in this :r.tne district are blessed. with 
staffs who not only teacll the custemary ed.ucationa1. courses, 'Du:t al.so ether :tundamental.s 
that will perm.it them. to become fine Canadians. 

Please accept this as an expressi0n of' admiration of your staff' and thanks to 
your pupils. 

signed.1 Mrs. Bruce Austin, Windsor, Onto 

This has been a common sigkt going along No. 3 Highway- near the school which 
two cemeteries re adjacent, Greenlarm Kem.0ria1. Ga'rfiens am. Viotcr.t.a Memorial.. Many 
peop1e have commented on this but this lady clicl a bit more in writing her appreciation 
on papere 'lhe two teaclllars presently at the school deserve a great cieal. of credit for 
the manners et their pupils. These in 1953 were Vrs. Stanley Holen in the Senior Room. 
and. Jira. Kat-ion Tiers in tlae Junior ReODto 

Comments in the paper f'ollowd.ng the notices Constable John Hughes said he had. 
seen impressed so often by tlle wa7 the boys and girls stand with heads b8118d. as fonerats · 
pass by. 

Al.so, following the item,, the .Anderson Funeral H<>'8 has given the sch0Cl>l a plaque, 
which sars 1 "Donated on behalf of all whe have sorrewed and passect this way in reoegnitioJ 
of the respect sham to their dear departed. ones by the students of s. s. Noo 6, Sand.wioh 
Sou.th, in a manner that exemp1ifies the thoughttW.ness and d.ue regard. of otherso11 

Littl.e did the boys and. girls realize what an impression their respecl had made. 

Nov. 16th, 1959 ... A bax of caretulll1' hoarded pennies is helping to builtJ. a bri4ge 
at understand.ing between healthy and re:tRded ohildren. 

The pennies~ transf'ormeci into a 12<>.oo cheque ewere presented to pupils 0t the 
Sunparlor School for Retarded. Children by students from s. g. No. 6, Sandwich South. 

TU presenta:tionwas male by 9 year olc1. B:i11yBcmsher, who was quite will.ing to 
ta1k to the press about it. 

"Y•see these kicis have a siclmess we don•t have and we get lots ef' things anyway,• 
he said, ttso, we decided to give them. the m.oney.n 

The money was a penny collection taken at meetings of s. s. No. 6 Home & School 
Association and norma1.ly it is used to give pupils a speoiat treat once a year. This 
specia1 treat took a d.Uterent term. this year. The pupils experienced the jey et giving 
instead ot receiving. 

ttwe like these kids and at'e glad to see tAem. having suth a geod. time at their 
school," said Billy. He was one of a group who had visited the SUn Parlor Sohoo1 during 
open house. Bill7, son of' Yr. & Vrs. Will.ism. Bowsher-, Howard Ave., was aided in 
presentation of' the cheque by carlene, eight year old. daughter at Mr• & Krs. Cmtl Esping, 
OldcastJ.e. He had one t1l:fmg more to say. "By the way, I think the teacher ciees a eea1. 
good job here,n he observed. 

A YEW THINGS OF NOTE OUT OF s.s.NO. 6 SCHOOL BEFORE ViE GO IN10 THE 
BlllLDmG OF THE Nm'l. SCHOOL WHICH WAS RE-NAMED PER.CI MCKEE SCHOOL 

Dec. 18th @\L940 - Miss Muriel K. Wilson of' w.Lndsor, daughter of Mr. D. H. Wilson, 
of' Ottawa and the late Vrso Wilson was married to Mre John Bel<ien, son of' Mr. N. B. 
Belden and the late Mrs. Belden of I>Ettroit on Dec. 21st. at Central United Church, 
Windsor with the Rev. Dr. H. A. Mick performing the ceremony. A reception was held. at 
the Manor in w.tndsor • Many pupils and. parents f'rom the Olc.tcastJ.e area and Rese1and. . 
area either were invited guests or attended. this wedding of interest in the comnmnit7, 
as the bricie had taught tor several. yem-s both in the Junior Reom and. later 8eoame 
Principal and. taaght the Senior Re01n. at Ne. 6 sob.Go1e It was a very festive seasen 
in the area as the Executive of the Home & School .Association h.ela a shower at the home 
of the president, :Mrs. George Martin on Wal.ker Road. for the &ride, who was a member. 
It was hilrieus as the officers under the direction of Mrs. w. A. Crcmfier planned & 

mock wedding, she 13iing the groom and Mrs. RDat. n. Fawcett, the bride and. Hrs. Martin 
the mock preacher. ·Man1' al.se attended the 1rouseau Tea. 



( 83 ) SCHOO~ OF SANDWICH SOUTH (Conte) 

. s. s. NO. 6 

June 18th, 1959 - Mro Harry OWen Knapper, son of Mr. & Yrs. Henry Knapper or 
South C&meron Blvdo,, Windsor married Miss Carol Ann Young, daughter of Mr. & Mrs. 
Donald Young o:r Sarnia. They were both graduates of the University of Western Ontario 
and Mr. Knapper taught at s. s. No. 6 several years. Picture release in Windsor star. 

The feature of the: December meeting of s. s. No. 6 Home & School .Associatien W8"S 
the presentation of a Lite Membership to Mrs. H. Lo Fraser, the first time in the 
history of the groupo In her address,, Mrs. Sam MacKenzie,, president wha presented the 
pin, d.eta:Ued the many helpful contributions Mrso "Jraser had made threugh the years, 
from being the wb.ampion "Popcorn Peppern for the Field days, •hot roll baker• fQr 
Baked Goods' Sal.es, to the chief message carrier, prior to the installation of the 
telephone in the school. Several form.er members were present and memories o:t early 
days of the group were exob&llged, and the history traced, and mention made of the fact 
that Mrs. Fraser had held every office in the Association,, except that of secretary. 
Her interest in ll1ndsor Council. activities of Home & Schoel. provided the chief source 
of contact for the group and she was at the time Chairman of the newly established 
Bursary Fund,, money of which would go ta assist some worthy student toward future 
education. A tram.ad certificate was presented and a1so a lovely arrangement of yell.ow1 
DaisyKums. 

Mrs. s. Snelgrove, Mrso Po Managhan and Mrs. c. Washbrc>ok served dEill.oious 
refreshments to members and termer members present wh.o were Mra. w. A. Crewder, the 
charter secretacy-, Mrs. Ee Herdman, Mrs. Je Butcher, Mrs. A. Stockman, Mrs. M. MacTier1 
Mrs. Frank Mil.ls, Founder of the Association and Mrs. George Mann a former president. 

Oct. 1956 - Unsanitary and antiquated conditic>ns and traffic hazards beset. 
SchoGl Section No. 6 in Sandwich South Township, parents claim., and have d.emandetii steps 
be taken by the school. board to remedy the situatien. 

A petition was presented to the township council asking that a number of stud.en~ 
now attending s. s. No. 6 be permitted to at tend a scheol in Sandwich West Tawnsbip. 
No decision was given hRever,, until the supporters met with the sohoo1 board, and a 
special meeting was called. 

The petition signed by residents on the east side of Howartl Ave. between Highway­
Noo 3 and the North Tal.bot Road asked for the rezoning et the school. area because 
s. So No. 6 was "msib.ta;cyn and most children must wa1.k one and a ha"Lf ta. two miles 
along busy highways eaoh wav. Change in zoning would affect six children troa 20 
families. They would attend Ivar Chandler Pu.blic Schoo1 in Sandwich West am wGUld be 
required to travel on'ly ha"Lf the distance over a safer courae. 

s. s. Noe 6 did not have sewage facilities or running water and :parents feel 
their children are entitled to these services. Henry' HartJ.ey, school bo&.l"cl chairman, 
pointed out that the school is situated on propert7 which is too 1ow for septic ta,Dks 
to function properly. Members of the delegation asked for a new schoo1 but board 
members said a new.school oan omn- be built it the present school. is either condemnecl 
or inadequate in size for the sohoel population. 

Public school supporters feel the unsanitary conditions shauld be enough reason 
to have the building condemned. They criticized the township's medical officer of 
heal. th f'or •tunctioning inadequatelytt by not inspecting the school proper1y • One man 
in the group pointed out that he was still waiting for the M.O.H. to examine his son 
who was bitten by a rabid deg twa years before. 

The school had two reom.s serving 70 pupils at the present time. Mr. Hart1.ey 
toli the Star that the building would be inade<t.uate for the schaol population when it 
reached so. The school board will. give further consi4erati0n to the petition and. 
meet again with the supporters on Novo 20th. 

Nov. 17th., 1959 - A de1egation from No. 6 schoel made a request tor some at:tien 
in connection with the building of a new school. The delegation agreed to furnish 
information concerning the population growth and distribution over the next three 
years and the secretary agreed to ask the Inspector whether there would be any 
dl.tticulty in securing approval of a new sohoo1 at No. 6. 

Dec. 2nd.,, 1959 - '!he need of another public school in Sandwich Sooth Tnnship 
was foreseen by Mil ton Fa.rough, a member of the township pu.b1ic school board. He 
satd that No. 6 on No. 3 Highway at #IPJ. was overcrowded and that in September of this 
year steps were taken to relieve the situation temporarily. 'lhe enrdallment from Sept. 
of 1958 to June of this year jumped from. 60 to 83 pupils. It was estimated there 
wouJ.d 47 pupils in the junior room. in September so some pupils on Howm-d Avenue and 
North Tal.bot Road were sent to lVor Chandler School in Sandwich West. The cost is $25 
per pupil per month with a 51% Dept. of Education grant received on the expenditure. 
It ma.v not be too 1ong before we need another school in this area., he toJ.d the t~ 
nomination meeting., "but, we have 1e:tt the decision to next year's board•" Early in 
1960, the baarci decided to build the three new sohoo1s including No. 6 and sought 
Aft_...._.,. ...... _ 
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s. s. NO. 6 
April 12th, 1960 ... The Board of Public School Trustees of Sandwich South held 

their regular meeting at school No. 6., with Henry Hartley, chairman, Milton Farough, 
Howard Holden, James F.l.eet present. Also present were Mr. Stanley Welsh and Mr Lavender· 
of the Essex & District Association for Retarded Children. 

Mr. Welsh and Mr. Lavender requested permission to move the annex from No. 6 to 
the Sun Parlor School which was on the site of No. 5, on Malden Road across from the new 
Charles Collin's School. They were informed that the Board was agreeable but that the 
annex would be in use at No. 6 until the new school was ready for occupan01.; sometime 
early in 1961. The annex was eventu.al.1y sold for 1500 to the Sun Parlr School and moved 
there. 

A.ls<> ratified at this meeting was the purchase of 1 3/4 acres of land from Wm. 
Burke for the new No. 6 school, motioned by Milton Farough, seconded by James Fleet. 

Jan. 17th, 1961 ... At the inaugural meeting of the Public School Board of Sandwich 
South, on motion of Mr. Howard Holden, seconded by Mr 0 James Fleet it was decided to 
name No. 6 school, the Percy McKee Public School. On motion of Milton Farough, seconded 
by Grant McKee, it was decided to have Larry Oliver of Essex, make the letters and put 
up the names on the three new schools. 

March 31st., 1961 - Old So s •• No. 6 school house at the corner of No. 3 Highway 
and the school lane is being torn down. Here is another era of the littJ.e red brick 
school house making way for the new modern structures in Sandwich South Township. Many 
of its former pupils stop and look with a lonesome feeline as many fond memoirs reach 
out to the poor old home of the three ~s and their first contact with real lile. 

Probably none of its students became prime minister or famous other gents and 
ladies but here was the start of many fine connnunity leaders and respected canadian 
citizens. Some have gone far and wide and some have gone no more than the back 
concessions that surround the old school. With the coming of suburban students cannot 
be taught in such things as the old brick sahool. Muddy feet, old log stoves, and all 
that trash has to go out and ii' you as much as drop a chewing gum wrapper on the floor 
or carve your initials on the seat, "God help you." 

On a Monday morning sometime in November, 1960 the new school was ready for the 
teachers and pupils to move into as yet s. s. No. 6 School. 

At the first Home & School Association meeting in the new year, Jan. 9th, 1961, 
the president Mrs. Wmo Bowsher, announced that the Sandwich South School Board had set 
the offieial opening for the new school for "Friday, Feb. 10th, at 8.15 p.m. The Rev. 
E. c. Grey, rec.:tor of st. Stephen's Anglican Church would dedicate the school; the 
speaker would be Gordon Mann, former inspector. The pupils would have a short musical 
program and the Home ~ School .Associ~on would serve refreshmentS'. Mr. H. A. Klinck, 
president Ontario School Trustees and Ratepayers Association, would present the Bible 
and Mro Fo A. Leitch, Public School Inspector, would bring greetings from the Department 

The Board at this time consisted of: Henry Hartley, chairman; Milton Farough, 
vice-chairman; Howard Holden, James Fleet and Grant McKee; secretary-treasurer, Mrs. 
R. Jo McDonald (Eleanor); 'Ihe StaM: Mrs. Estella Holden (Stanley), principal; Mrs. 
Marion Tiers - assistant; Agnes HartJ.ey, Music supervisor; Charles Grainger, caretaker. 
Architect: J. w. Storey, Chatham; and the contractor was C0llavino Brothers Constructicn 
Co. 1 Lt.des Windsor. 

MRS. ES'IELLA HOLDEN'S RETIREMENT PARTY - The tables were turned on an honors 
graduate when she returned Saturday, June 25th, 1966 to the Percy McKee School in · 
Sandwich Sou th Township to salute Mrs. Estella Holden •tho was retiring after teaching 
20 years at the school. Mrso Allan Parr of OldcastJ.e, who graduated from the school 
in 1948 as Marion Bennett in the Windsor Star picture release was watching Mrs. Holden 
place the dunce cap on the former honor student, Miss Nancy Pettypiece of the cl.ass of 
1964 and now of Niagara FallBe Mrs. Holden taught sohool in Sarrlwich South Township a 
total of25 years and taught at s. s. No. 4 before coming to s. So No. 6. Guests from as 
far as Sto Catharines, st. 'Ihomas and Monroe, Mich. were among the cr0Wd that turned out 
to Percy McKee School, Saturday to honour Mrs. Stanley Holden on her retirement. 
Surprise guests were her grandchildren, Bonnie, Susan and Tim Holden, who motored .from 
Sarnia where they were Visiting from their home in Calif er nia. The program was staged 
outdoors. A special verse to "School Daystt written by one of Mrs. Holden's former­
pupils, Bomrle Copland, was sung by her and the roll call showed representatives from 
practically every year of Mrso Holden's 25. All past presidrents of the Home & School 
Association since it was formed in 1940 when the school was s. s. No. 6, were there. 
Mrs. George Martin, charter president, Mrs. 1".rank Mills, Mrs. Percy Jessop, Mrs. Geo. 
Mann, Mrs. David Donnelly, Mrs. H. L. Fraser, Mrso Arthur Mann, Mrs. Sam MacKenzie, 
Mrs. lfmo Bowsher who came from st. Thomas for the occasion, Mrs. Carl Esping and Mrs. 
B. E. Stauth, present president. Mrs. w. Ao Crowder, oharter recording secretary was 
also there. A set of luggage was presented to Mrs. Holden, who with her hustiand was 
Europe bound to visit a son, Ronnie who was in Germany in the Services. Pupils of the 
school had arranged the indoor setting for the tea afterwards. 'Edwin Crowder was on 
his honeymoon, being a graduate in 1953 • He sent best wrishes and contributed to the girr 
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s. S. NO. 6 (PERCY MCKEE) ~t. 

s. s. No. 6 (Percy McKee Sohool) was phased out in Juhe 19?0. 'lhe last 
teachers were, Mrs. Howard Kimball (Eleanor) Principal and te~her of the Sro Room; 
and Mrs• Al ve Mc Elroy, teacher of the Jr. Room. 

'Ihe l~t ~raduating class,.June, 19?0 consisted of Joan Pettypiece, carol 
DeVreker, Gail Tilden,, James Martm,, Dale Martin Ronald Thrasher Bradley O'Neil 
Bill Raymont, Willard Holden and John Garlick. , , ' 

S. s. NO. 10 PUBLIC SCHOOL 

UNION SCHOOL NO. 16 is located on the corner of the Saidwicb South-Colchester 
North Townline and the 9th concess:Eon of Sandwich South (commonly knovm as the Essex 
Tovmline). Two townships, namely Colchester North & Sandwich South contribute to its 
maintenance and running expenses. The school was built in 1923 with Miss Marie Carrie 
as its first teachero Messrs. Richard Hartley, Curtis Toffiemire and Gilbert O'Meil 
were the first set of trustees. One acre of land was purchased from the Mr•e Land'} 
Company of Ohio who owned what is the Henry Hartley farm todaY • First classes were ~ 
opened early in 1924. It cannot be remembered as that tt].ittJ.e red school house" as ~ 
they painted it white when it was bull t and has stayed that way• All grades were !J1 
taught in this school untj]. Sept., 1965 when the Opportunity classes were transferrB<fl! 
from Fairplay School to Noo 10 with Mrs. Helen Davis as teacher. Then in Sept., 1969 
the first public school kindergarten opened at No. 10 with Mrso Robert Currie as 
teacher-; then at the end of the chool term in June 1970 this one-room scho0l was phasec 
out, along with No. 4 and No.6 or Percy McKee School and some G)f the pupils v;ent to 
the new Sandwich Wes:t Elementary School. The kindergarten cl.asses were transferred 
to s. s. No. 5 in Sept. 1970 with Mrs. Shirley Dicker· as their teacher. 

June 29th,, 1966 - The Wiindsor Star had a feature story on the school which 
head-lined UL.AST OF THE ONEo..P..OOMERS"o 19Pupils don•t walk from room-to.-.room at s.s. 
Noo 10 - it•s just not possible because it is Essex County•s last remaining on~oom. 
school and of frame construction at that0 Snuggled protectively in a grove of stately 
elm trees the school is the county's final link with a memorable educational era. At 
one time 96 schools dotted the Essex countryside0 Immediately following the Second 
World War their numbers declined untj]. now there is only one. A year, perhaps two and 
then there will. be none. Actually it was four years and in 1970 it became history. 

A one-room school provides an academic atmosphere that wil1 never be matched 
by today• s modern structures. 'Ihis was the feeling of Mrs. Helen Daviis, the present 
instructor. As a teacher I know that the children are not receiving as good an 
education here,, as they would at a central school,, but despite this our li ttJ..e school 
has many advantages, she said. "They·miss the social involvement they woul<d experiencE 
in a larger school and al so the specialized teaching since the same teacher deals wi ti\ 
children of all ages. These are some of the disadvantages. There are al.so good points.11 

For Mrs. Davis the 00.vantages take on importance due to circumstances. Her 
class is ma1e up of 13 slow-learning pupils. 

"No one is different here. The children know that everything isn't entirely 
right, but it doesn•t seem to bother theIB.o They are relaxed, enjoy life and they are 
learningo0 The students enjoy benefits that other school ch:Udren only dream of. A 
barbeque luncheon is not unusual during the warmer school days, nor is a trek through 
nearby woodso 

As for teaching aids the school has a radio, a piano, a well stocked library 
and a projector is readily availableo 

"We dontt freeze in the winter and cool country windls keep things comfortable 
in the summer. There are none of the conventional disturbances; a car seldom passes, 
sirens have yet to .be heard and no one plays outside the school•s windows. 

All in a1J., we have a wonderful set-up, but don•t misunderstand me,, the one­
room school is outmoded and with some reservations I will move to a larger school,, but 
it will be best for the children." 

Ch:il.dren at No. 10 mostJ.y walked to school or came by motor car when the 
weather was inclement, until 1965 when Mr. Kennedy o.f Essex Transportation Company 
VlaB given a contract to transport Noo 10 children to No. 4 and to Percy McKee School 
at a cost o:f $21.45 per day. This arrangement continued until the kindergarten class 
began in 1969 and they were transported by bus also, until the school was phased outo 

The school got its first piano in 1943 when Agnes Hartley was music supervisor,, 
and the school was wired for electricity about 1946. Art was taught by Miss Edith 
Shearer. 

In 1946 books for reading were lent to a11 the schools in the area by the 
Essex County Library; these were distributed by the secretary-treasurer of 1he Area 
School Noard. In 1949 a bookmobile was instituted by the Essex County Library 
Association. It travels from school to school and supplies each school with materialc 


